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Ms. Camille Tooker 

Associate General Counsel 

Palm Commodities International, Inc. 

1117 J.P. Hennessey Drive 

LaVergne, Tennessee 370&6 


Re: Palm Commodities lntematjonal. lnc. 

Docket No. TSCA-04-2011-2S00(b) 


Dear Ms, Tooker: 

Enclosed is a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in 
the above-referenced matter. The original CAFO has been filed with the Regional Hearing 
Clerk and served on the parties as diroc.1ed in Section 22.6 oithe Consolidated Rules ofPractice, 
40 CFR Part 22. 

As stated in Section V of the CAPO, the assessed penalty of$70,OOO is due within 30 
days from the effective date. Please ensure that the face of your casbler's or certified check 
includes the name of the respondent and the docket number of this case. Penalty payment 
questions should he directed to Mr. Bryson Lehman either hytelephone at (513) 487-2123 or by 
written correspondence to his attention at U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, CincJnnati 
Accounting Operations at the address identified in the CAFO, 

Also enclosed is a copy of a document entitled "Notice of Securities and Exchange 
Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document 
puts you on notice ofyour potential duty to disclose to the Securities and Exchange Commission 
any environmental enforcement actions taken by EPA. 

bl$mOlt Addt"$S {URl). ttttp'llwww.OIPlLgov 
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Should you have any questions about this matter or your compliance status in the future, 
plcase call me at (404) 562-8979 or Mr. Verne Q<'Orge of the EI'A Region 4 ,taff at 
(404) 562-8988. 

SincereJy, 

AI r,. ntt.. 
~e~, Gettle 1...­
Chief \" 
Pesticides and Toxic 
Substances Branch 

Enclosures 



UNITED STATES 

ENVlRON~ENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


ATLANTA, GEORGIA 


I'· . 

In the Matter of: ) '_, .I 

) , 
Palm Commodities International, inc, ) 

) 
Doeket No.: TSCA-04-20 11-250O(b)' 

r ­ -_,,' 

) 
, 

Respondent. ) 
) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL QRDER 

I. Nature of the Artion 

1, 	 This is a civii penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Toxic Suhstance~ 

Control Act (TSCA), 15 U5,C, § 2615(.), and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules uf' 

Praclice Governing Administrative Assessment ofCivil Penalties and the 

RevocatioruTermination or Suspension of Pennits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C,F,R. 

Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides, and Taxies Management 

Division, llnitt:d States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 (EPA). Respondent 

is Palm Commodities International. Inc. 

2. 	 Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the PllI'pOse of settlement pursuant to 

40 C,l; .R. § 22,18 and desire to fesolve this matter and settle the allegations described 

herein without a forma! hearing, Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 

testimony, the making of any argwnent, m the iJdjudication ofany issue in this matter, 

and in accordance with 40 C.F.R § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and }'inal Order 

(CAFO) will simultaneousiy comrncnt~e and conclude this matter. 



II~ PrelimiPan' Statements 

3. 	 Pursuant to Section 15 ofTSCA .. 15 U.S.C. § 2614, it is unlawful for any person to: 

(l) fail Of refuse to comply with any rule or order promulgated pursuant to Sections 4. 5, 

8,12, or 13 ofTSCA (15 U.s.C. § 2603, § 2604. § 2607. § 2611 or § 2612); (2) use lor 

commercial purpose ... a chemical substance or mixture that lhe person knew or had reason 

to know was manufactured~ imported, processed, or distributed in commerce in violation 

ofTSCA Section 5, 15 U.S,C. § 2604; (3) fail to maintain record" submit report' or 

infomlation, Of pennit access to or allow copying of records as required by TSCA: and 

(4) refuse to permit entr)' or inspection as authorized by S(~Clion 11 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C, 

§ 2610. Any person who violates a provision of Section 15 ofTSCA may be assessed a 

penalty of up to $27,500 for each such violation, in accordance willl Section 16(a) of 

TSCA. Pursuantto the Civil Monctary Penalty lnllation Rule.w C.F.R. Part 19, 

effective January 12,2009, the r;tatutory penalty amount ha~ been adjusted due to 

inflation to $37.500, F,ach day a violation continues may constitute a separate violation, 

4, 	 The authority Lo take action under Section 16(a) of TSCA. 15 U.S.C, § 26J5(a), is vested 

in the Administrator of EPA. The Admini':.1!ator of EPA has delegated this authority 

under TSCA to EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 12-2-A, dated May 11, 1994. 

5. 	 Complainant \\111 file the Original non-confidential CAFO 'With the RegionallIearing 

Clerk and a copy will he mailed to tbe Respondent. 

6. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.P,R. § 22.5(c)(4) the following individual is authorized to receive 

service for EPA in this proceeding: 
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Verne George 
Chemical Products 

And Asbestos 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Fomyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8%0 
(404) 562-8988. 

III. Specific Allegations 

7, Respondent owns and operates a chemical manufacturing plant located at 1717 JP 

Hennessy Drive, LaVergne, Tennessee. 

8, On May 2, 2008, Complainant mailed an information request letter (IRL) 10 

Respondent's place of business inquiring about the use of copper sulfate. 

Q. The lRL was mailed as an alternative to an on site inspection pursuant to Sc\.:tlon 11(a) or 

TSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2610(0). 

lO. On May 19; 2008, Respondent submitted a written response to the IRL 

1 L On September 19, 2008, Respondent submitted a 20Q61nventory Cpdate Report (lUR) to 

the EPA Region 4 for sulfuric acid coppt.'l' (2+) salt (I:!) [CAS # 7758-9R-71 a type of 

coppt.'J' sulfate (hereinafter "'Chemical A"), 

12. On September 23,2008. Respondent submiued an fUR to the EPA Headquarters that 

addressed Chemical A and the following additional chemical substances: Cobalt oxide 

(Co304) [CAS # 1308-06-1J; Acetic acid, nickcl(2+) salt [CAS 1/ 373-02-4]; Kickel 

chloride (NiCI2) [77t 8-54-9]: Sulfuric add, nickeI(2+) salt (1:1) rCAS # 7n6-8J -4J; 

Nitric acid. lanthanum(3T) salt [CAS # 10099-59-9]; "itrie acid, ccrium(3-t-) salt rCAS # 

10108-73,3]; Nitric acid, neodymium(3+) SIIII [CAS # 10045-95-1]; Lanthanum chloride 

(Lael3) ICAS # 10099-58-8J; Nitric acid, pmscodymium('l+) salt [CAS # 10361-80-51: 

and Zirconium, bis(nitrato-.kappa.O)oxo' CAS # 13826-66-9J. 
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13. Respondent did not disclose to Complainant that a 2006 IUR referencing cJeven 

additional chemical suhstanccl> was submitted to the EPA Headquarters, 

14. 	 On Septetnber 26, 2008, Complainant mailed a show cause letler to Respondent for 

fuiling to submIt a 2006 IUR for Chemical A. 

15. 	 On March 5. 200'), Complainant mod a CAPO Drn;ket No. TSCA·04.2oo9.2609(h) 

which resulted in the settlement of the case regarding Chemical A. 

16. 	 On July 22. 2009. the EPA Headquarters informed Complainant that R«pondcnl 

submitted a 2006 TUR addressing eleven additional chemical sUbstances. 

17. 	 On December 11,2009, Compiainant mailed a second show cause letter to Respondent 

for failing to disdos,e to Complainant that they failed tu submit a timely 2006lUR for 

eleven additional chemical substances, 

t8. The eleven chcmica1 substances were subject to the 20(){l lUR a<!l deseribl>:d in 40 C .... ,R, 

§ 710.45. 

19. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 710.48, Respondent is a manufacture:riimporter that wa~ sUb.icct 

to the 2006 IUR. 

20. 	 As referenced in 40 e,ER. § 710.53~ the 2006 IUR submission period was 

August 25, 2006. through March 23, 2007. 

21. 	 RC!:>"Pondent tailed to submit the 2006 fUR to EPA during the submis,sion period 

descrihcd in 40 C.F.R. § 710.53. 

22. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F ,R § 710, I ( c). it is unlawful fur any person to fail or refuse to submit 

information required under the ITJR Regulations. 

Palm Commodities lnternational, In,;,\ 4 
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IV. Consent AlIretment 

23:. 	 For the purposes of this CAFOt Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set iorth 

above and neither admits nor denIes the factual allegations set forth above. 

24. 	 Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right 

to appeal the proposed Final Order ac,cornpanying the Consent Agreement. 

25. 	 Respondent (;onsents to the assessment of the penalty proposed by EPA and agrees to pay 

the civil penalty a" set forth in this CAFO. 

26, Respondent certifle~ that as of the date of its execlltion of this CAFO, it is in compliance 

with all relevant requirements of TSCA, 

27, 	 This CAFO con~1itutes a settlement by EPA of aU claims for chil penalties pursuant to 

Section l6(a) ofTSCi\, for the specific violations aUeged ncrcin. Except as specifically 

provided in this CAFO. EPA reserves all other civil and criminal enforcement authorities, 

including the authority to address imminent hazards. Compliance with this CAFO shall 

not bc a defense to any other actions subsequently commenced pursuant to fcdcrallaws 

and regulations administered by EPA. and it is Respondent's responsibility to comply 

with said laws and regnlations. 

28. 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this mattcr by their execution of this CAFO. 

The parties agree that the settlement of this matter 1S in the public interest and that this 

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of TSCA. 

V. Final Order 

29, 	 Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of SEVENTY THOUSA:'ID DOLLARS 

($70,000) which shail be paid Yfithin 30 days from the effective date of this CAFO. 
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30, Respondent shall remit the civil penalty by either a cashicr's or certified check made 

payabJe to the "Trea~;urerl United States of America," and shaH send the check to the 

following address by U.s. Postal Service; 

U.S, Environmenta1 Protection Agency 
finc!) and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Centcr 
PO Bux 979077 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000. 

The chet:k shan reference on its face the name of the 

Respondent and ~ketNumber of this CAFO. 


31. At the time ofpayment) Respondent shaH send a separate oopy of the check and a \-\Titten 

statement that the payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, Lo each ofthc 

fullowing persons at the following addresses: 

Regiunal Hearing Clerk 
U.s. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Ocorgia 30303-8960; 

Verne George 
Chemical Product< 

and Asbestos S(,,'Ctlon 
U.s. EPA Region 4 
6 t Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, ()eorgia 30303-8960; 

and 

Saul1di Wilson 
Otl1ce of Envtronmental Ae<:ollntabiHty 
C.S. EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Srreet 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960. 

32. For the purpo~s of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled, 

and agree::; not to attempt. to claim a deductinn for any civil penalty payment made 
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pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to dcdui.<'t any !'mch payments shall 

constitute a violation of this CAPO. 

33. 	 Pursuant to 31 US.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts 

Qwed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handllng a 

delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date 

of entry of this CAFO, if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will alsn 

be assessed to cover the administrdtive costs, both direct and indirect. ofoverdue debts. 

ill addition, a late payment penalty \:harge shall be applied on any principal amount not 

paid within 90 days of the due date. 

34. 	 Complainant and Respondent sha11 bear their o\\n costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

35. 	 This CAFO shall he binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

36, 	 n,e undersigned representatives of the parties to this CAFO certifY that he or she is fully 

authorized by the party represented to cntt:r into this CAFO and legaHy binds that party to 

this CAFO. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFl' BLANK. 
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VI. Effective D.te 

37. The clTective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with the 

Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Respondenl, Palm Commodities International, Inc:. 
Docket No.: TSCA-04-2011-2500(b) 

By: .~(S;!!l1ature) Date: 

Name: ~bff~~~___,(Typed or l'cinted) 

Title: "" fft,:;,l¢ Dt'> _. ___(Typed or Printed) 

Complainant; U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

By: ..~:.tQ..~~m 
Beverly H. Banister. irector 

Air. Pesticides and Taxies 


Management Division 

61 forsyth Street 

Atlanta. Georgia 30303·8960 


APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this . .l_._
.if 

day Of~' 2014-JfJ 

By: s~;{.jf,~· ?~ 
Regional Judicial Officer 

Palm Commodilies International, Inc. 8 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the date set oUl below, I filed the original and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a true and correct copy of' the 

luregoing Consent Agreement and final Order, in the Matter of: Palm Commodities 

International, Inc., Docket Number: TSCA.04-2011·2500(b), to the addressees listed bel"",. 

Camille Tooker 
Associate Generai Counsel 
Palm Commoditie~ International, Inc. 
1717 J.P. Hennessey Drive 
LaVergne, Tennessee 37086 

VemeGeorge 
Chemical Products 
and Asbe:-tos Section 

U.s. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Ueorgia 30303·8960 

Ken powcn. Attorney 
Ofi1ce ofEnvironmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·R960 

(via Certified Mail, Retum Receipt Requested) 

(via EPA'", internal mail) 

(via EPA's internal mail) 

.. 
Patricia i\. Bullock. RegIOnal Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protectiun Agency. Rt:giQD 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street 
Allarta, Georgia 30303·8960 
(404) 562-9511 
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